
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL
Chief Executive

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Monday, 26 November 2018

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: The Dove Room, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek

16 November 2018

PART 1
1. Apologies. 

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any. 

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6)

4. Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel. 
(Pages 7 - 16)

5. Declaration of Interests: 

 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

 Other Interests

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. 
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15).

7. Joint Governance Arrangements & Annual Update - Matthew Ellis,  Staffordshire 
Commissioner, Police, Fire, Rescue and Crime. 

8. Citizens Advice Bureau - Annual Update from Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek. (Pages 
17 - 38)

9. Work Programme (Pages 39 - 40)
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:

 Chair’s Items
 Members’ Items

Public Document Pack



SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor A Banks (Chair) Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Bull Councillor S Ellis
Councillor E Fallows Councillor D Grocott
Councillor B A Hughes Councillor K J Jackson
Councillor P Jackson Councillor J T Jones
Councillor L D Lea Councillor M A Lovatt
Councillor M M Lovatt Councillor L A Malyon
Councillor C Pearce Councillor J Redfern
Councillor T Riley Councillor D Shaw
Councillor P Wood



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING

Minutes

MONDAY, 9 JULY 2018
PRESENT: Councillor A Banks (Chair) 

Councillors B A Hughes, M A Lovatt, L A Malyon, T McNicol, 
C Pearce, T Riley and P Wood

ALSO PRESENT: Councillor Johnson

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Bowen - Portfolio Holder for Communities, Leisure, 
Sport, Parks, Countryside & Housing  
Councillor Ogden - Cabinet Support Member

APOLOGIES: Councillors E Fallows, D Grocott, K J Jackson, L D Lea and 
M M Lovatt

96 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS.

DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meetings of the Panel held on the 19th March 
and 2018 and 5th June 2018 be approved as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair.

97 TO NOTE THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE 
STAFFORDSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL.

DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Staffordshire Police and Crime Panel Meeting 
held on 23 April 2018 be noted.

98 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS.

There were none.

99 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.

No declarations of interests were made.

100 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS.

There were no questions to the Portfolio Holders.

101 UPDATE ON GRAFFITI - CHIEF INSPECTOR MARK THORLEY.

At the request of a member, Chief Inspector Mark Thorley updated the Panel on the 
current situation with graffiti in the area. For the instance at the Bus Station in Leek, Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 July 2018

2

the perpetrators had been identified and dealt with accordingly. Since then some 
instances of graffiti had re-occurred in the town centre which had led to a number of 
juveniles accepting responsibility and referred to the Youth Offending Team. 

Some graffiti had also been carried out on the railway carriages at the Churnet 
Valley which was being dealt with by the West Midlands Police Force. 

The local policing team had visited local schools and talked to children about graffiti, 
the dangers of swimming in the outdoors, fires and raised awareness of the SPACE 
scheme. This piece of work appeared to be successful as a reduction in the number 
of instances of graffiti had been seen.

Members asked questions relating to claiming costs and the removal of graffiti. It 
was confirmed that costs would need to be claimed through a civil court and the 
removal of graffiti was the responsibility of the owner of a property, which the Council 
could assist with at a cost. If the graffiti was in a public place this would be cleaned 
by the Council.

Discussion also took place around the recent moorlands fires in the area, the impact 
these had on the various authorities, an alleged spate of assaults and possible 
grooming. The Panel was advised to contact the Police should they have any 
concerns and the Council’s Licencing Team. 

The poor condition of the bus station in Leek was highlighted and a request was 
made for this to be looked into. Councillor Bowen would discuss this with Cabinet. 

The Chair thanked the officer for attending the meeting.

DECIDED: That the update be noted.

102 SCHOOL FUNDING LETTER UPDATE - ANDREW SHAW, EXECUTIVE 
HEAD OF THE LEEK FEDERATION.

Further to a letter being sent to the Secretary of State for Education in relation to 
funding for schools, Andrew Shaw, Executive Head of the Leek Federation was in 
attendance at the meeting. He thanked the Panel for sending the letter; the Leek 
Education Partnership had noted and recognised the Panel’s support on this matter.

The Executive Head explained that funding was going to be an ongoing issue, there 
was a difference in the calculations for funding of 2 and 3 tier school systems and 
representations had been made. Despite the letter stating that funding had increased 
for schools, in real terms schools had received a spending cut. The school continued 
to save where possible for example working in collaboration with other schools, 
goodwill of staff and governors.

Councillor Bowen had recently attended a Local Government Association 
conference at which all Councils were in agreement that the increases in funding 
received were no where near enough. 

Discussion also took place around redundancy, recruitment difficulties, and numbers 
of students attending Cambridge or Oxford from the north of the country and support 
for children with special needs.

The Panel thanked Andrew for attending the meeting.Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 July 2018

3

DECIDED: That the update be noted.

103 YOUR HOUSING GROUP (YHG) 6 MONTHLY UPDATE - SHARON 
WHEELER, PROPERTY MANAGER SOUTH & PAUL STANNERS, SERVICE 
MANAGER. 

The Panel considered a legacy agreement update report introduced by Sharon 
Wheeler - Property Manager South and Paul Stanners – Service Manager. 

In February 2018, Eaton House closed and the Moorlands housing team moved to 
agile working. This involved using an office in Moorlands House and offering a drop-
in service in Moorlands House reception one day a week. Face to face meetings with 
the YHG housing team were available to customers throughout the week. A 
dedicated free phoneline which connected to Your Response (customer call centre, 
was available on reception at all times. 

A central lettings team had also been set up which provided a more efficient service 
to the customers as the majority of ‘sign ups’ could now be done digitally.

Members were concerned that they had not received the points of view of the tenant 
representatives or any customer satisfaction data. Sharon Wheeler advised that the 
tenant representatives attended the meeting in November but since then they had 
stepped down and YHG were in the process of recruiting further members. It was 
mentioned that all housing associations experienced difficulties with customer 
involvement which the Panel sympathised with. Members suggested that an 
advertisement was placed in the local press and on the radio.  

A member of the Panel requested clarification of ‘agile working’ and it was explained 
that agile working enabled staff to spend more time out on their patches to carry out 
area walk-abouts and meet with customers. Some members felt that this led to a 
reduced level of customer service, particularly for people living in rural areas and 
vulnerable customers. It was explained that less customers were going into the 
offices, events held within the community were poorly attended and home visits were 
available to tenants. 

Discussion also took place around the current team structure, staffing numbers and 
work bases. 

The Chair passed on his thanks to the officers for attending the meeting. 

DECIDED: 

1) That the update report be noted;

2) The importance of the tenant representatives being appointed for the next 
meeting be noted;

3) That the next update report include customer satisfaction data, feedback on 
agile working, an update on new builds and financial information for the 
repairs budget and untenable properties;

4) For a YHG Board Member to be in attendance at the next meeting.
Page 5



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 July 2018

4

104 SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND ADULTS AT RISK OF ABUSE AND 
NEGLECT - DAVID SMITH, PRINCIPAL OFFICER - COMMUNITIES & 
PARTNERSHIPS .

The Panel received a report which included an amended policy to reflect legislative 
and other changes since the Council last made revisions in 2016. The report also 
provided an update to Councillors on the Council’s actions to meet its safeguarding 
duties.

The Council was committed to ensuring the safety and protection of people using its 
services. In response, the Council has developed policies and procedures to ensure 
that children and adults at risk of abuse and neglect were safeguarded when using 
services provided by or on behalf of the Council in accordance with the relevant 
legislation and statutory guidance.

The Council had established an officer group, chaired by the Executive Director 
(People) to co-ordinate the Council’s response to safeguarding. 

Recent actions included: updating the Council’s safeguarding policy, providing 
safeguarding training for staff members; updating recruitment and training 
procedures, and reviewing staff safety arrangements. The Council had also 
supported the work of the Safer and Stronger Communities Strategy Group to 
safeguard the local community.

The Panel discussed the mechanisms for dealing with grooming and the importance 
of reporting any concerns members may have. It was also mentioned that 
disturbances in pubs had increased during the World Cup but a celebration parade 
had also taken place without any issues.

DECIDED: That the Panel notes the actions taken by the Council in response to its 
safeguarding duties and the amended Safeguarding Policy.

105 WORK PROGRAMME

DECIDED: The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed, 
subject to, the Police Crime Commissioner being invited in relation to the new joint 
governance arrangements with the Fire Service.

The meeting closed at 3.50 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 6



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel Meeting held on 29 
October 2018 

 
Present: Stephen Sweeney (Chairman) 

 
 Carl Bennett 

Randolph Conteh 
Paul Darby (Co-Optee) 
Stephen Doyle 
Ann Edgeller 
 

Brian Edwards 
Peter Jackson 
Mr K. Walker (Co-Optee) 
Jill Waring 
Ashley Yeates 
 

 
 
Apologies: Simon Gaskin 
 
PART ONE 
 
16. Appointment of Chairman 
 
RESOLVED – That Mr Stephen Sweeney be appointed Chairman of this Panel. 
 
17. Declarations of interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion. 
 
18. Minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2018 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Police and Crime Panel meeting held on 3 July 
2018 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 
 
19. Decisions published by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner (PFCC) 
 
Details of decisions taken and published by the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner 
(‘The Commissioner’) had been circulated to members.   
 
In order to provide for more meaningful scrutiny, Panel members requested a review of 
the extent to which text in published decisions was redacted. 
 
The published decision on the award of a contract for the provision of Domestic Abuse 
Support Services was discussed (see minute 20 below) 
 
20. Questions to the PFCC from Members of the Public 
 
Members of the public submitted questions and received the replies detailed (see 
Appendix to minutes). 
 
The Panel subsequently questioned the Commissioner on the award of the contract 
particularly on whether the current level of involvement by volunteers in the provision of 
support services would be maintained and, if not, what action the Commissioner would 
take in the longer term should any formal contractual arrangements cease.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

- 2 - 
 

Responding, the Commissioner was confident that volunteer commitment would 
continue, commenting that he was holding discussions with local Groups on their 
involvement in the delivery of new contract. 
 
Addressing questions on the tender and evaluation processes for the contract, the 
Commissioner considered the process to have been fair, transparent and robust. He 
submitted that the exercise had secured a single cross county service of a constant 
standard for all.  
 
The Commissioner clarified the position on provision of Refuges for victims of abuse, 
explaining that funding was allocated to local councils and that he was working with 
them to provide co-ordinated support for victims. 
 
 
21. Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service 
 
a) Update on Governance and Commissioner Development in Staffordshire and 
Stoke-on-Trent 
 
The Commissioner reported that following the transfer to him of Governance 
responsibility for the Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service from  1 August 2018, key 
actions to fulfil the statutory requirements in relation to the transfer of staff, assets, and 
resources had been completed and the Strategic Governance Board for that Service 
had met and decisions published.. 
 
RESOLVED – That the update be noted. 
 
b) Collaboration between Staffordshire Police and Staffordshire Fire and Rescue 
Service - Update 
 
The Commissioner reported on a number of functions for which joint working 
arrangements  between the Police and Fire and Rescue Services had been in operation 
for some time including Supplies and logistics, and emergency transport and 
engineering.  Referring to his own priorities he acknowledged the need to address the 
shortage of retained Firefighters in Staffordshire. He also reported that discussions were 
underway with the Chairman of the West Midlands Fire Control Governance Board on 
future arrangements.. Looking to future proposals the Commissioner reported the 
establishment of a Joint Governance Board to identify and make recommendations to 
him on opportunities for collaboration/service improvement. 
 
RESOLVED – That the current level of collaboration be noted. 
 
 
c) Fire and Rescue Service Corporate Safety Plan 2017 -20 (Incorporating 
Integrated Risk Management Plan)- Update 
 
The Panel considered a report on the implementation of the Staffordshire Fire and 
Rescue Service Corporate Safety Plan 2017 – 20 which incorporated the Integrated 
Risk Management Plan (IRMP). 
 

Page 8



 

- 3 - 
 

The report detailed the required contents of both the IRMP and the Corporate Safety 
Plan.  The documentation had been endorsed and adopted by the Commissioner when 
taking responsibility for governance of the Fire and Rescue Service and the three 
priorities of Education and Engagement, Community Safety and Wellbeing and 
Planning, Resilience and Response had been re-affirmed. 
 
The Commissioner reported on the performance of the Service against a series of key 
indicators and detailed various projects being undertaken in partnership with other 
agencies. A summary was given of the involvement of the Staffordshire service in a 
number of regional and national initiatives including the National Operational Guidance 
Programme and the Joint Emergency Services Interoperability Programme (JESIP) 
aimed at improving liaison between the three main blue light services attending major 
incidents.  
 
The Commissioner reported that he continued to familiarise himself with the work of the 
Fire and Rescue Service and anticipated drawing up proposals from Spring 2019 to 
build on the success of the service. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  
 
d) Medium Term Financial Strategy - Fire & Rescue 
 
The financial position at the time of transfer of governance of the Service to the 
Commissioner was a total budget for 2018/19 of £40.216million, 37% of which was 
central government funded , the remainder raised by the Precept.  The Service was 
committed to a four year efficiency plan to achieve £4million of savings up to 2019/20. 
(in return commitment to that 4 year plan had given the service security regarding its 
central government funding levels over the four years) Up to March 2018 £2.2m had 
been achieved. the remaining £1.8m of savings had reduced to £1.3million following a 
higher than assumed Council Tax Precept rate for the current year. Measure were in 
place to achieve the £1.3million.    
 
The Commissioner reported on Central Government’s recent announcement on the 
need to increase employer contributions to the Firefighters Pension Scheme with effect 
from 2019/20 following review by the Actuary.  National level discussions were currently 
taking place on the funding of any increase in contributions.  Other risks to the budget 
position were reported, including potential reductions on Government funding and the 
effect of any change in the way in which the Capital Programme was funded.  Savings 
anticipated as a result of changes to the Service governance arrangements were 
detailed however none had been incorporated into the current years budget. 
 
A number of assumptions on central and local funding levels and  pension costs to the 
service up to 2021/22 were detailed which gave a predicted budget deficit in 2021/22 of 
£2.469million. 
 
RESOLVED – That the budget position be noted 
 
22. Staffordshire Police Service 
 
a) Safer, Fairer, United Communities for Staffordshire 2017-2020 

Page 9



 

- 4 - 
 

 
The Commissioner reported on the progress of projects and initiatives under his Safer, 
Fairer, United Communities for Staffordshire, focussing on those pursued under the 
‘Early Intervention’ theme. 
 
Members’ discussion centred on the SPACE scheme to which the Commissioner had 
allocated funding during the 2018 summer period.  In practice the Commissioner 
allocates funding to organisations, including local councils, to set up and run youth 
engagement schemes during the summer school holiday periods, in order to reduce 
anti-social behaviour. 
 
The Commissioner was questioned on the extent to which the funding provides for new 
diversionary activities over and above those already provided by organisations such as 
Youth Clubs. The Commissioner acknowledged that in some instances established 
activities were being incorporate into the SPACE scheme, suggesting that this reflected 
a wish to be associated with the strong reputation of SPACE and its achievements. His 
funding did provide for new, additional projects which otherwise would not exist.  The 
overall reduction on anti-social behaviour was his priority and he expressed appreciation 
of the work of many partner organisations and volunteers in delivering the SPACE 
scheme. The Commissioner was asked to consider in relation to SPACE were  the 
complexity of the funding application process and the wish to see the scheme extended 
to provide  all year round activities. 
 
Members remained concerned about the future of Safer Neighbourhood Panels and 
sought assurances from the Commissioner on their future funding.  The Commissioner 
reiterated his wish to review the Panels due to a wide variation in their effectiveness and 
degree of public engagement.  He continued to look to SNPs as a means of providing 
local accountability for the Police Service. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
b) Medium Term Financial Strategy - Police Service 
 
The updated Medium Term Financial Strategy for the period to 2021/22 showed an 
estimated funding gap of c£15million. This was a revision on the £13million reported to 
Panel in February 2018 and was mainly due to recent government announcements on 
an increase in employer contributions to the Police Pension Scheme with effect from 
2019/20. The forthcoming Comprehensive Spending Review was adding to uncertainty 
about future Policing budgets. 
 
 The Commissioner reported on national discussions on the funding of the additional 
contributions to the Police Pension Scheme and gave assurances that at the present 
time he was pursuing the recruitment and appointment of additional warranted officers in 
line with his proposals when the 2018/19 ‘enhanced’ Precept was approved. 
 
Referring to the national and local picture on Police funding and activity, the 
Commissioner reported that whilst Government funding remained stable, the percentage 
allocated to national priorities was increasing, reflecting the changing nature of crime. 
He briefly summarised national and local police performance levels commenting on the 
risks to local performance posed by budget reductions. The recently produced Force 

Page 10



 

- 5 - 
 

Management Statement served to co-ordinate the challenges and expectations on the 
Force with its financial expectations. 
 
The Commissioner’s assumptions on costs and inflation up to 2021/22 were detailed 
together with the gap analysis for the MTFS for the same period. That gap analysis 
showed a shortfall of £4.494million in 2019/20 which was dependent on achieving 
reductions in the Capital Programme and securing other savings. Any savings resulting 
from collaboration with the Fire and Rescue Service had not yet been incorporated into 
forecasts.   
 
Referring to the Capital Programme and level of Reserves, the Commissioner proposed 
a gradual reduction in the Programme to limit the long term borrowing requirement, and 
to replenish Reserves, explaining his intention to use the latter as a revolving investment 
fund in line with his belief that maximum funding should be available for frontline 
services. 
 
The Commissioner requested the opportunity to discuss budget options for 2019/20 with 
the Panel prior to submitting a proposed Precept to their January 2019 meeting.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Medium Term Financial Strategy update be noted and a 
consultation event be held on 26 November 2018 
 
23. Questions to the PFCC by Panel Members 
 
Responding to a request for an update on action to address unauthorised travellers’ 
encampments in the County, The Commissioner reported that a Guidance Paper had 
been issued across policing areas and commented on the general over-expectation of 
the role and powers of the Police Service to address this issue.  
 
24. Dates of Future Meetings and Work Programme 
 
The Secretary submitted details of proposed meeting dates and work programme for the 
Panel up to April 2020. Members queried the ability of the proposed arrangements to 
accommodate the Panel’s additional responsibilities in relation to the Fire and Rescue 
Service. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman consider options for the future management of the 
Panel’s workload. 
 
Appendix to the minutes of the Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel meeting 

29th October 2018, Item No. 6. 
 
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC TO THE POLICE, FIRE AND 
CRIME COMMISSIONER 
 
1.From J Bould of Hednesford (questioner not present) 
 
 I am President of Soroptimist International of Cannock and District, as a service 
organisation and charity we have been supporting our local Women's Aid and Pathway 
organisations outreach work and know the vital service they provide to victims of 

Page 11



 

- 6 - 
 

domestic violence. We understand that there has recently been a new domestic 
violence service commissioned from one countywide organisation. Could the PCC help 
us understand the impact this is going to have locally, and what community impact 
assessment was done in regard to the effect on those local charities and communities 
who have been serving our communities locally? 
 
Matthew Ellis - “Community Impact assessment was done as part of a very 
comprehensive commissioning exercise. The impact is broadly going to be 
around getting rid of the ‘postcode lottery’ that’s been there for some time. I firmly 
believe that you should be in a place where you don’t have to rely on living in a 
particular place in order to get a necessary service. We envisioned spending 
more of the available money on frontline services and the commissioning process 
showed that more value, more money would go to frontline services. With the way 
we commissioned it, with one provider, rather than multiple providers. Refuges 
are mentioned quite a lot, Refuges are not affected, the only thing that is affected 
is the fact that I’ve subsidised, quite rightly, by the way, the reduction in budgets 
that the City Council and the County Council have made over recent years, with 
an extra 1.8 million pounds from my budgets. So, the principle was single service 
across Staffordshire, as it has turned out, additional investment, and, above all, 
making sure that there is consistency across the city, and across all of 
Staffordshire, as far as the service availability is concerned.”           
 
Stephen Sweeney – “The question is ‘could the PCC help us understand the 
impact this is going to have locally?’ do you think you’ve answered that?” 
 
Matthew Ellis – “I think I’ve said I’m putting 1.8 million pounds more in. I think, no 
matter where you are in Staffordshire or Stoke-on-Trent, it’s not guesswork as to 
whether you’re going to get the service. So, things like the support services for 
people who’ve suffered domestic abuse and need to go to court, this sort of thing, 
in different parts of Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent, you would get a different 
level of service.” 
 
2. From Dr J Lomas of Cannock (questioner not present) 
 
The PCC has recently commissioned a new countywide service, including stoke, and 

the award has been made to a single, national provider. The provision of refuge support 

was not part of this award. Yet there is a great deal of publicity at the moment about 

refuges being at risk nationally.  What does the PCC intend to do about refuges and 

supporting them in Staffordshire given they are there for the most at risk victims? 

Matthew Ellis - “Refuges are really important. Local Authorities receive funding 
from Government for Refuges. So, whilst we have supported refuges, we have 
supported the organisations that provide them. I don’t get any money for refuges 
at all, so it’s down to the City Council and the County Council. I do think that 
some of the local money that I provide through the funds that go to district 
councils, is spent on refuges, but that is a local decision for those councils to use 
the money that I provide as they wish.” 
 

Page 12



 

- 7 - 
 

Stephen Sweeney – “So the question is, what does the PCC intend to do about 
Refuges and supporting them in Staffordshire, given they are there for the most at 
risk victims – have you answered that?  
 
Matthew Ellis – “I think so, yes.” 
  
3. From G Jones of Lichfield (questioner present) 
      
In October 2017, as part of the then OPCC’s 2nd attempt to Recommission Domestic 

Abuse Support Services, a market engagement event was held by the OPCC. The 

event was attended by both local and national organisations, looking to tender for the 

upcoming service. Attending on behalf of several national organisations were a number 

of Business Development and Bid-writing personnel whose sole role is to win new 

business on behalf of their multi-million-pound national charities. Support Staffordshire 

fulfils a similar support function, by advising and supporting local charities. Why did the 

OPCC attempt to bar Support Staffordshire from attending this event and thereby 

disadvantage local bidders, as evidenced in email communications originating from 

Helen Jarvie, the OPCC’s Commissioning Manager? 

Matthew Ellis –  My understanding is that, whilst Support Staffordshire are 

absolutely there to support local organisations, and whether that was done 

successfully is open to conclusions to be drawn from the result. My 

understanding is that there should have been a balance between it being a level 

playing field across the country and for the local organisations, and I understand, 

and I wasn’t there, but I understand that in a report that you felt that you were 

unable to play a level playing field and fight the corner of local organisations, and 

the way that you did that resulted in a number of complaints afterwards from 

providers attending the meeting. I’m not going to criticise you in the slightest for 

fighting for local organisations, but the law is very very clear, it is an open, and a 

free process, it is a very regulated process, and, as it turned out, the local 

organisations did not put bids together which  were effectively meeting the 

criteria which meant that Victim Support, which is a national organisation, a 

renowned national organisation, won the contract. Since that time, I’ve worked 

very closely with ARCH, and we’re in a very good place now, and I have agreed 

strategic alignment going forward with ARCH, and I’ve also agreed that I want to 

support both Pathway and Women’s Aid going forwards – but this was a very, 

very legal process, it was carried out I believe to the letter. You will know there 

has been a legal challenge that has been withdrawn because we carried it out to 

the letter, and, whilst I’m disappointed that local organisations did not secure the 

contract, we had to go with the best value, the most robust service, and the 

organisations that could provide the best frontline services for people in 

Staffordshire” 

Stephen Sweeney – “A supplementary question you would like to ask?”    

G Jones – “I don’t believe my original question was answered, as the 

Commissioner’s answer commenced at a point at which I attended the meeting in 

question. My question was why was there an attempt to bar me from attending the 

meeting in the first place.” 

Page 13



 

- 8 - 
 

Matthew Ellis – “I’m not aware that there was any attempt to bar you from the 

meeting, but I will certainly have a look at that afterwards if that’s what you’re 

suggesting happened. I’ve had a pretty clear picture about the issues that were 

raised – I absolutely get that you quite rightly want to support local organisations, 

but domestic abuse is a massive, massive subject, we have to go with the 

organisations that can prove beyond doubt that they are the ones who can 

provide the best service, in the most cost effective way – I think that’s what’s 

being done. I am more than happy, I mean this is the first time that you’ve raised 

this with me, as far as being barred – I don’t think anybody’s been barred, I think 

the issues that were raised were that you were perhaps somewhat overzealous in 

wanting to promote local organisations, which I applaud on the one hand, but this 

is a, very highly, regulated process and we have to make sure that we stay legal, 

that we do it in a way which cannot be challenged, I think that we’ve proven that 

by the fact that an initial challenge was made that was very swiftly withdrawn 

afterward, and  all three of the organisations involved with that, we are now 

working productively with to move forwards, and the same applies to Support 

Staffordshire, as long as you play by the rules.”  

4. Second question from G Jones of Lichfield (questioner present) 
 
Following the recent award of the Domestic Abuse Support Service to Victim Support by 
the Staffordshire Commissioners Office, Support Staffordshire submitted a Freedom of 
Information request pertaining to the assessment process. Support Staffordshire asked 
to see the assessment scoring and for details of the moderation process that led to the 
selection of Victim Support. We have not asked to see the content of any of the bids, 
only the scoring. Nevertheless, our request has been refused on the grounds that the 
scoring is commercially sensitive information. As this is clearly inaccurate, will the 
Commissioner instruct his office to release all the information requested with immediate 
effect, in order to preserve the transparency of the process and avoid any perception 
that his office has something to hide? If not, can he explain why not? 
 
M Ellis – “This entire process has been complex, it has been done to the letter, 
the information that you are requesting, again, is partly confidential, and I think 
my officials have been in touch with you to explain why it can’t be provided, and it 
would also cost thousands of pounds to get it all together, so I would suggest 
that, if you disagree with the decision, and bearing in mind that the others 
affected are not in the same place as Support Staffordshire as far as this issue is 
concerned, I would suggest that you deal with the Information Commissioner 
directly, and we’ll take it from there.”            
 
5. From C Holdcroft (questioner not present)  
 
As a member of the local community, I have invested time and donations into our local 
domestic violence charities over the last 24 years, by helping to equip and furnish the 
refuges, by supply goods to people when they are re-housed and supporting the charity 
wherever possible. With a new national organisation now delivering this service, can you 
ensure that our local investment continues to be protected?  
 

Page 14



 

- 9 - 
 

M Ellis – “For three years now we have been concerned about the difference, the 
‘postcode lottery’ to be quite frank, that is available in domestic abuse services 
across Staffordshire. I’ve put in an additional £8.1 million over three years. I 
believe that the way in which Commissioners and police services have followed 
very closely our efforts to, across the country, get people to come forward rather 
than suffering in silence, which has clearly been happening for many years. I 
think the services have to be there to meet those people that come forwards, and 
so when we first started to look at joining up with the city council, and also the 
county council, the express reason was to make sure that first of all we could 
potentially reduce administration costs, and, secondly, we could ensure that there 
wasn’t a ‘postcode lottery’ depending on where you happened to be in 
Staffordshire. The principle of this is being achieved – I would argue, as you 
would expect me to, I am very confident that we can talk about this in another 12 
months’ time and I think you will find that the service is more consistent, that its 
available faster, some of the services are now 24 hours, which is a first for 
Staffordshire, and, in short, I think the redesign of the service, that wasn’t based 
on imaginary red lines that go across the road depending on what local authority 
area you’re in was exactly the right thing to do. The extra investment to make up 
for disinvestment elsewhere I felt was necessary as well and it’s been very 
difficult to do, but we’ve done it, and I think that when we go and we look back at 
the services in twelve months’ time we will find it was the right thing to do. At the 
end of the day it is a significant, serious player in the market who is delivering the 
service, mainly in Staffordshire, called Victim Support, and, if you remember, 
Victim Support were the organisation we didn’t give the tender to as far as victim 
services is concerned, which, at the time, was exactly the right thing to do, and 
they themselves admit that they learnt a lot from losing that contract and have 
changed the way they do things. So I’m extremely confident the service we’ve got 
is one of the most joined up, the most effective, and one of the least ‘postcode 
lottery’-orientated ones in the entire country, and actually, at a time when most 
organisations are reducing funding to domestic abuse, in Staffordshire its being 
maintained, and slightly increased, albeit mainly from my budget.”  
                 
6. From J Prince of Cannock (questioner not present) 
 
Following the recent changes in the provision of support for those who suffer from 
Domestic Abuse in Staffordshire, Could the PCC explain how he will ensure that the 
new domestic violence service meets the National Statement of Expectations on 
Violence Against Women from the home office? 
 
M Ellis – “I can absolutely give that assurance.” 
 
7. From D James MBE of Stafford (questioner not present) 
 
The OPCC has recently commissioned a new countywide, single domestic abuse 
service in partnership with Staffordshire County Council and Stoke City Council, and the 
award has been made to a single, national provider. The provision of specialist support 
within refuge accommodation was not part of this award. Yet there is a great deal of 
publicity at the moment about refuges being at risk nationally, and some concern and 
debate at a government level.  What does the OPCC and its commissioning partners 

Page 15



 

- 10 - 
 

intend to do to support the continuation of refuge provision in Staffordshire given they 
are there for the most vulnerable and at-risk victims? 
 
M Ellis – “I say again, I don’t receive money for Refuges, it is the city council and 
the county council that receive money for that. Some of the locality deal that I 
provide to every district and borough authority is spent on Refuges – that will 
continue, it is a local decision by those councils to do that. But as part of the 
overall picture of what support for domestic abuse looks like, whilst it’s not in my 
hands, it’s in the city council and the county council’s hand, I know there’s been 
some reductions, particularly in the county council provisions for that, I will do 
everything I can to make sure that those two authorities do as much as they can 
to support people who are in need of refuge.”     
 
8. From D James MBE of Stafford (questioner not present) 
 
 ‘The OPCC has recently commissioned a new countywide, single domestic abuse 
service in partnership with Staffordshire County Council and Stoke City Council, and the 
award has been made to a single, national provider. The provision of specialist support 
within refuge accommodation was not part of this award. Yet there is a great deal of 
publicity at the moment about refuges being at risk nationally, and some concern and 
debate at a government level.  What does the OPCC and its commissioning partners 
intend to do about refuges and supporting them in Staffordshire given they are there for 
the most at risk victims?’  
 
Answer given as above. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 
be available on request. 

Documents referred to in these minutes as Schedules are not appended, but will be attached to the 
signed copy of the Minutes of the meeting.  Copies, or specific information contained in them, may be 
available on request. 

 

Page 16



Citizens Advice Staffordshire North and Stoke on Trent’s Report to 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council

April 2017 - March 2018

Since 2013 when we merged Citizens Advice Staffordshire North and Stoke (CASNS) has 
provided the residents of Biddulph and the surrounding area with a high quality advice 
service. We provide advice on several levels ranging from basic signposting and the 
provision of information, to generalist advice through to specialist casework. We also deliver 
that advice in many ways including face to face across all 4 of our sites, telephone advice 
and email advice.

Telephone advice was previously provided via the Staffordshire Advice line until the end of 
February 2017 when funding was withdrawn by Staffordshire County Council.  Since this 
date we have been trying to run a limited phone service for clients from Biddulph using 
volunteers as we are very aware many clients cannot attend in person due to disability or 
caring responsibilities. In September 2018 we started an exciting new project using Keele 
Law students to supplement the volunteer resource to help increase the provision of phone 
advice to Biddulph and the surrounding area.

Achievement and Performance
During the 2017/18 financial year the local office dealt with 2,408 issues for 822 unique 
clients (clients are only counted once no matter how often they use the local office) with 
2,179 activities carried out (activities include interceding on behalf of clients with statutory 
and other agencies via phone, letters, e mail and online).

Every client who comes into the local office is recorded, with their permission, on our case 
management system (provided to us by National Citizens Advice). This system allows us to 
extract a lot of very useful information about our clients, their problems and what we do for 
them which is then used to inform our work with partners and also to assist in our Research 
and Campaign work at both a national and local level.

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



Advice Categories

Page 18



As the table shows the area of welfare benefits remains by far the highest category of 
problem in Biddulph (49.81%). The biggest demand is with assistance with disability benefit 
claims, with PIP followed by ESA being the biggest benefit areas. The largest debt issue is 
with council tax recovery. 

We are anticipating that as Universal Credit is rolled out across Biddulph the demand for 
advice in both welfare benefit and debt will increase, as council tax reduction is not one of 
the benefits amalgamated into U.C and legacy benefit claimants will be being migrated to a 
new benefit with new compliance conditions that they have not previously been subjected 
to.

We are still experiencing a demand for assistance with to the number of housing benefit 
(HB) applications we are assisting clients with since Staffordshire Moorlands required all 
claims to be made on line. Over the last financial year we have assisted 25 households with 
making and managing a claim as they were either unable to navigate the application 
process unsupported or did not have access to the appropriate technology. In addition to 
this since blue badge applications have come online we have assisted 15 clients with their 
applications because they were digitally excluded.

Case Study 1 
Client Profile

Client is a single female, divorced living in a Your Moorlands property, client suffers from 
epilepsy, anxiety and depression as well as migraines. Her sister came with her due to her 
blacking out and did most of the talking due to the client forgetting. She has had epilepsy 
for the past 64 years however the seizures have become more frequent. She has had 
several falls lately and burnt herself making a cup of tea.

She was previously on DLA which her social worker helped her with her DLA last time, 
however she was now being transferred onto PIP. 

Description of client’s enquiry

Client came in wanting help to fill out the PIP form as she didn’t have a social worker 
allocated to her any more.

Action taken

We filled out the PIP form on behalf of the client, we went through the descriptors 
explaining the criteria for the points which she would need to be awarded in order to getting 
the benefit.

Once she had heard from the DWP about her application for PIP we asked if the client or 
her sister could let us know the outcome for records.

Outcome

Client’s sister came in on her behalf and said she had been awarded Standard Rate Daily 
Living, bringing in a weekly income of £55.65, making an annual gain of £2,893.80.

Page 19



Client’s sister thanked us for all our help and brought us a box of chocolates.

Case Study 2 
Client Profile

Client is retired, married, living in their own property she has had long term health issues for 
a while including arthritis, hip replacement, asthma and a broken arm in two places.

She was advised by her GP to make a claim for Attendance Allowance, due to how much 
help she needed in the daytime as well as at night time. Client was unaware of any benefit 
that they may be entitled to regarding her ailments.

Description of client’s enquiry

Client and her husband both attended the appointment for us to help fill in the AA form 
which the client had received. We also offered a benefit check to the client but they 
declined. 

Action taken

We filled out the AA form on behalf of the client, we went through the descriptors explaining 
the criteria for the points which she would need to be awarded in order to getting the 
benefit.

Once she had heard from the DWP about her application for AA we asked if they could let 
us know the outcome as there are two rates of the benefit.

Outcome

A couple of months later the clients husband rang to let us know that his wife had been 
awarded a back payment of £664.80 and a weekly amount of £83.10 making an annual 
income of £4,321.20.

Client and her husband thanked us for all our help and were very grateful for the service 
they received.

ADDED VALUE
As well as offering generalist advice to all clients and specialist advice to money advice and 
housing clients we are also able to assist clients to access other funds which may improve 
their situation. Being part of a national network like Citizens Advice does ensure we are 
able to access these alternative funds. 

In the last financial year the generalist advisors have completed 8 applications to the 
Severn Trent Water Big Difference Scheme, 2 applications weren’t completed due to the 
clients not being eligible for the scheme. 6 were successful 2 awarded an A award (80% of 
their bill) and 4 being awarded A+ (90% of their bill). A total amount of £1,308.44 was 
achieved on behalf of the clients and they have all been asked to come back in a years’ 
time so we can help them reapply.

 On some of the occasions client have also identified they have additional debts as well, in 
these instances the debt adviser has applied for the BDS as part of the clients overall debt 
strategy and we also provided information to clients on how to self-refer where they have 
the capacity to do so these figures are unavailable to us.Page 20



We get money for the Big Energy Saving’s week each year to give people energy advice 
and particularly information and support to reduce their energy costs. We were able to open 
our local office on an extra day and were able to save one Biddulph client £140 off their 
energy bill.

Clients
Clearly CASNS Biddulph office, whilst one of the smaller local offices, is very highly prized 
and needed by that community.  This can be demonstrated by the tables below which 
shows that it is used by all demographics that make up the local area.

Volunteers
We could not offer the services we do without the help and support given by the volunteers 
who assist us in giving advice or work behind the scenes within the local office.  Our 
volunteers contributed 6,552 hours of work during the year. The estimated value of this help 
is £62,188 in respect of 2017/2018. 

We continue to write a bi-monthly advice column in the Biddulph times and have written 
advice on many subjects including holiday advice and claiming compensation, Redundancy 
and debt and Consumer advice all issues we frequently have to in the bureau. An example 
of a column printed this year is below. 

Biddulph Citizens Advice Corner

I am behind on my energy bills and my energy company wants to install a prepayment meter. 
I don't want one as I've heard they can be more expensive than paying by direct debit. What 
can I do?

Suppliers may try to install a prepayment meter if you are falling behind on your bills. This is so you 
can pay for your energy by topping up your meter before you use it, and don’t get into debt. 

If you don’t want pay for energy in this way, contact your supplier to tell them you are struggling with 
your bills. They should help you agree a repayment plan, based on how much you can afford and Page 21



how much energy you use. If you are already on a plan but can’t afford it, see if you can make a 
new arrangement.

Also discuss with your supplier the costs of the different meters and tariffs. Once you’ve agreed to 
pay back your debts, your supplier won’t install a prepayment meter if you don’t want one.

There are further steps you can take to help you with your bills. You may be eligible for the Warm 
Home Discount, which could reduce your energy bill by £140, or a one off Cold Weather Payment 
from the government.

Some energy companies also offer grants to their customers to pay off fuel debts, while other 
companies and charities have grants which are open to anyone. 

For further help on negotiating with your supplier or applying for benefits, contact Citizens Advice.

For further advice on Consumer Issues contact Consumer Helpline on 03454 04 05 06 or get in 
touch with your nearest Citizens Advice.
Biddulph Citizens Advice (10, Tunstall Road, Biddulph, ST8 6HH) opening times Monday, 
Wednesday and Thursday from 10am – 1pm.
You can also visit www.citizensadvice.org.uk for information about a wider range of subjects or 
phone Adviceline on 03444 111 444.

Changes in coming year
We are currently preparing ourselves for the start of Universal Credit going Live in Biddulph. 
As our work with online applications for Housing Benefit and Blue badge applications can 
demonstrate there is a proven need for digital assistance for those residents who are 
digitally excluded either due to capacity issues or an inability to access the appropriate 
technology, this is an additional need in relation to their actual advice issues but one we are 
confident we can help address.

Page 22

http://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/


The difference we 

make to Cheadle 

Our impact in 2017/2018 

P
age 23



.  

Last year more than a thousand people 

came to us for help solving their 

problems.  
 

This means we’re an important part of 

the community, with a credible 

understanding of local needs.  
 

We use this to tailor our services and 

help improve local policies and practices.  

 

 

[Insert story about 

Alex here] 

62,149 saved by Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council last 

year 

£2.22 for every £1 invested in 

our service  

P
age 24



This is Ellen 

Last year, we saw over 1064 people 

about 7,403 issues.  

 

Ellen’s story shows how we help people 

solve their problems, and why this is 

important.  
 

P
age 25



Rob helped Ellen, a retired lady, with her 

housing problem.  Her privately rented 

property was going to be sold by her 

landlord. Rob advised her on the process 

the landlord would have to follow to evict 

her and helped her to find alternative 

accommodation.  
 

Together, they worked to maximise her 

income and she was given advice and 

assistance in claiming Guaranteed 

Pension Credit, Attendance Allowance,  

Housing Benefit and Council Tax 

Reduction, increasing her income by 

£222 a week. 

 
 

Solving Problems 

P
age 26



OUR VALUE TO THIS COMMUNITY  

This is only one fraction of our true value. 

We also:  

 

● help clients negotiate local 

processes, such as welfare reform 

changes 

 

● help local authority council tax 

arrears to be rescheduled, reducing 

the associated administrative costs. 

 

[Insert story about 

Alex here] [Insert story about 

Alex here] 

140,340.14 
saved by local government, 

through reducing homelessness 

Our savings to the public purse include:  

Maximising the income for those we help prevents 

more costly intervention.  
 

This helps reduce financial difficulty,  

promotes inclusion and benefits the economy.  

P
age 27



Why fixing problems matters 

If left unsolved, problems don’t just 
affect the individual -  
they affect this community.  
 
Solving them creates considerable value 
to society. 
 

 

Outcomes and impact research, 

2017 

P
age 28



How our advice makes a difference to 

peoples finances and their wellbeing  
 

Rachel was advised to come to Citizens Advice  for help with her financial 

problems including gas & electricity arrears amounting to £1191 by her fuel 

supplier.  With four children to care for she was anxious to avoid having her 

gas & electricity supplies disconnected. 

 

In addition, the pressure of dealing with a debt collector was having a 

detrimental affect on her mental health and she was having difficulty coping 

with her every day life. 

 

Our energy champion negotiated a better fixed rate deal with her supplier 

which cut her energy costs immediately. 

 

Our specialist debt adviser helped her with other financial pressures and 

provided support with budgeting.  Rachel is now able manage her finances 

and her health and wellbeing has improved. 

 

 

   

  
 

  

Nearly 1 in 2  
felt their physical health 

had improved  

7 in 10 people 
felt less stressed, 

depressed or anxious 

Outcomes and impact research, 2017 

P
age 29



OPENING UP ACCESS CHANNELS TO THE 

SERVICE 

 Telephone – Adviceline 

 E-mail 

 Text Messaging Service 

 Blythe Bridge Outreach 

P
age 30



Our value to society  

£3.32 

in savings to 

government and 

public services  

(fiscal benefits) 

 

Total: £335,511 

£16.14 

in wider economic 

and social benefits  

(public value) 

 

 

Total: £1,630,772 

£23.74 

in financial value to 

the people we help  

(specific outcomes to 

individuals) 

 

Total: £2,397,733 

For every £1 invested in our service in 2017/18, we generated:  

P
age 31



HOW WE CALCULATE OUR FINANCIAL 

VALUE 
● Keeping people in employment or 

helping them back to work 

● Preventing housing evictions and 

statutory homelessness 

● Reducing demand for mental health and 

GP services 

● Improving mental wellbeing and positive 

functioning  

● Improved family relationships 

 

From our robust management information, we’ve 

also separately considered the financial benefits 

to the people we help.  

Its impossible to put a 

financial value  

on everything we do but 

where we can, we do. 

 

We used an approved 

Treasury model to do this. 

P
age 32



WHAT OUR CLIENTS SAY ABOUT US 

They were very helpful 
and said they were 

always available if they 
needed us again.  We 
thought that was nice 

touch 

Staff are very 
helpful and have a 
wide knowledge of 

information 

Fantastic customer 
services, lovely people, 
very helpful. Used their 

services more than 
once and they have 

been great every time. 

All the staff I have encountered at Citizens 
Advice  have been friendly, supportive, 

honest and professional.  I appreciate all 
their efforts given my current state. 

I can’t remember my 
advisors name 
because I was 

stressed but he was 
very helpful and 

sorted my problem 

P
age 33



We can’t do it without our 

volunteers 

This is Rob 

The wider value of volunteering 
 

People like Rob give their time, skills and 
experience to enable us to reach as many people 
as we do.  
 
There are also considerable benefits for them too, 
such as improved employability.  
 

This year our trained volunteers gave up 5356 
hours of their time to help deliver our services.  
The financial value was £98,009 
 

 

P
age 34



And we couldn’t do it 

without you 

We would like to say a big thank you 

to the District Council and Cheadle 

Town Council for their unwavering and 

generous support. We really 

appreciate it. 

P
age 35



Presented by: Dawn Keates, Debt Adviser 

Date: November 2018 

P
age 36



Key Statistics

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12%

<25

25-29

30-34

35-39

40-44

45-49

50-54

55-59

60-64

65-69

70-74

75+

Age

43%57%

Gender

Female

Male

48%35%17%

Disability / Long-term health

Disabled

Long-term health condition

Not disabled/no health problems

97%

Ethnicity

White

Asian

Black

Mixed

Other

Issues Clients

Benefits & tax credits

Benefits Universal Credit

Consumer goods & services

Debt

Discrimination

Education

Employment

Financial services & capability

Health & community care

Housing

Immigration & asylum

Legal

Other

Relationships & family

Tax

Travel & transport

Utilities & communications

Grand Total

184

22

31

78

91

81

5

95

33

101

73

7

34

399

40

6

498

7,403

607

33

47

148

159

134

8

237

47

213

157

8

42

3,256

79

9

2,219

Issues

Income gain

Re-imbursements, services, loans

Debts written off

Repayments rescheduled £30,742

£357,387

£6,249

£702,455

Outcomes

  In person 41% 1,901

  Telephone 14% 638

  Letter 32% 1,470

  Admin 10% 443

Channel

In person

Telephone

Email

Letter

Admin

NR

1,064

135

4,656

1,383

7,403

Summary

Clients

Quick client contacts

Issues

Activities

Cases

0 200 400

19 Employment Support Allowance
21 Personal independence payment

07 Housing Benefit
23 Council tax reduction
99 Other benefits issues

10 Working & Child Tax Credits
03 Pension Credit

11 Jobseekers Allowance
18 Carers Allowance

17 Attendance Allowance
02 Income Support

326
407

323
323

173
195

94
45
80

45
48

Top benefit issues

0 200 400 600

09 Council tax arrears
49 Debt Relief Order

13 Credit, store & charge card debts
14 Unsecured personal loan debts

99 Other
04 Fuel debts

12 Bank & building society overdrafts
16 Water supply & sewerage debts
15 Catalogue & mail order debts

07 Rent arrears -  housing associations

608
330
359

285
134
153
139
112

121
93

Top debt issues

_______________________________________________

_______________________________________________

Cheadle (member) 2017-18

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2018/19

Date Items for Agenda
09 July 2018

Safeguarding Update
Your Housing – 6 monthly update
Graffiti
Funding for schools Letter

01 October 2018 Jill Norman – Support Staffordshire Projects Update
Fly-Tipping
Environmental Enforcement

26 November 2018
Joint Governance Arrangements - Matthew Ellis –  Staffordshire Commissioner : Police-Fire & 
Rescue-Crime
CAB Annual Update

21 January 2019
Your Housing – 6 monthly update
Fire & Rescue Service Annual Update  - Brian Moss (Presentation)
Local Policing Team Annual Update – Chief Inspector Mark Thorley
CCTV – David Smith

18 March 2019

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually
Staffordshire Commissioner Annual Update  
Local Policing Team  Annual Update
Your Housing – 6 Monthly Update

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 9



Fire & Rescue  Service Annual Update
Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update

P
age 40


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	4 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Staffordshire Police, Fire and Crime Panel.
	8 Citizens Advice Bureau - Annual Update from Biddulph, Cheadle and Leek.
	Citizens Advice Cheadle Local impact presentation 2017-18
	Citizens Advice Cheadle Key Stat 17-18

	9 Work Programme

